ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 16, 2006
8:13 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Bob Lynn

Representati ve Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 290
“"An Act relating to issuance of identification cards and to
i ssuance of driver's licenses."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 438
“An  Act relating to initiative, ref erendum and recall
petitions; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO 45

“"An Act anending the definition of the term 'lobbyist' in the
Regul ation of Lobbying Act; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 34
Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
limting appropriations from certain mneral revenue, relating
to the bal anced budget account, and relating to an appropriation
[imt.

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 16, 2006



CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG STATE COWM SSI ON FOR HUMAN RI GHTS
- HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 3/ 21/ 06

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 290

SHORT TI TLE: REQUI REMENTS FOR DRI VER S LI CENSE/ I . D.
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LYNN

04/ 28/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
04/ 28/ 05 (H STA, JUD

03/ 09/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 09/ 06 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

03/ 16/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 438

SHORT TITLE: | NI TIATIVE, REFERENDUM RECALL PETI TI ONS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAMRAS

02/ 08/ 06 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 08/ 06 (H STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 09/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 09/ 06 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

03/ 14/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 14/ 06 (H Heard & Held

03/ 14/ 06 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 16/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 45
SHORT TITLE: CONTRI BUTI ONS, LOBBYI STS, DI SCLOSURE
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) WEYHRAUCH

01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H STA, JUD

02/ 23/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 23/ 06 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 14/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 14/ 06 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 16/ 06 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

NANCY MANLY, Staff
to Representative Bob Lynn

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 16, 2006



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Made a suggestion during the hearing on HB
290, on behal f of Representative Lynn, sponsor.

DUANE BANNCCK, Director

Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

said Representative Guenberg addressed all the changes in his
review of Version Y.

MATTHEW KERR

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of  hinself in
opposition to HB 290.

ELI ZABETH BARBARA BACHVEI ER

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hersel f in
opposition to HB 438.

MYRL THOMPSON

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATENMENT: Testified on Dbehalf of hi nsel f in
opposition to HB 438.

JOHN VI NDUSKA
Pal mer
Testified on behalf of hinmself in opposition to HB 438.

ROBI N McLEAN

Sutten, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of herself during the
heari ng on HB 438.

M CHAEL M LLER

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testifying on behalf of hinself during the
hearing on HB 438, addressed the issue of people outside of the
state funding petition efforts in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 45 as sponsor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 16, 2006



BROOKE M LES, Executive Director

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 45.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:13:42 AM Represent ati ves
Gatto, Elkins, Lynn, Gardner, and G uenberg were present at the
call to order. Representative Ranras arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HB 290- REQUI REMENTS FOR DRIVER S LI CENSE/|. D

8:14: 45 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 290, "An  Act relating to issuance of
identification cards and to i ssuance of driver's |licenses."”
8:14: 45 AM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 290, Version 24-1LS0981\Y, Luckhaupt,
2/ 2/ 06, as a work draft.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed. He said he would first like
to hear an outline of the changes nade in Version Y.

8:17:29 AM

NANCY MANLY, Staff to Representative Bob Lynn, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, on behalf of Representative Lynn, sponsor,
suggested that the director of the Division of Mdtor Vehicles,
Duane Bannock, would best be able to review the changes.

8:17:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r evi ewed t he changes hi nsel f.

8.18: 47 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked M. Bannock if there are any further changes
t hat woul d be brought about through Version Y.

8:18: 55 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 16, 2006



DUANE BANNOCK, Director, Dyvision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Department of Admnistration, said Representative Guenberg
covered all the changes in his review of Version Y.

8:19: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved his objection. There being no
further objection, Version Y was before the commttee.

8:19:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, as sponsor of HB 290, noted that a simlar
bill was before the legislature during its previous session, and
many of the concerns raised at that tinme are still valid today.
He said the bill would require that anyone obtaining an Al aska
driver's license have a legal presence in Alaska, which
coincides wth having a |egal presence in the U. S

Representative Lynn stated that President George W Bush signed
into law the Real ID Act on May 11, 2005, the provisions of
which inprove the security of state driver's |icenses and
identification (ID) cards, which Representative Lynn posited is
a good idea. The proposed legislation, he said, is designed to
bring Alaska into conpliance with "two nmajor conponents” of the
Real 1D Act. Applicants with a tine-limted |egal status may
not receive a driver's license or ID card that has an expiration
date later than the length of their allowable tine in the US
If the applicant's paperwork permts an indefinite length of
stay, he said, then the expiration date of the |icense would be
one year from the date of issue. Representative Lynn relayed
that the federal governnent has given Al aska the date of My 11,
2008, to cone into conpliance with the Act, but he stated his
belief that the seriousness of the issue deserves action before
that tine.

8:21:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked what the consequence would be for
states that don't conply by the set date.

8:22: 05 AM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he doesn't know.

8:22:27 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 16, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if the Division of Mtor Vehicles
has access to the appropriate docunents to determ ne whether
sonmeone issued a driver's license who is not a citizen has
reached the limt on the length of tine he/she is allowed to be
in the state.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he believes the division has access to
that information.

8:22:51 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that there is no fiscal note in the bill
packet . He indicated that there would be a |egal requirenent
that the Division of Mdtor Vehicles determne the validity of
docunentary evidence, and he questioned what type of liability

would be placed on the DW enployees if they "do not catch
docunents that would not be legal."

8:24: 03 AM

MR. BANNOCK expressed pleasure in being involved with HB 290.
He described the legislation as "a part of comng into
conpliance with the federal Real ID Act." However, he stated
that not all of the details of the Act have been conpleted; the
federal rule-making conmittee is currently neeting to devel op

"all of the mnutia of this Act." Al aska has identified two
maj or conponents that are out of conpliance, which HB 290
addr esses. M. Bannock told the commttee nenbers that during

his testinony, he may use the term "driver's license" and nean
both driver's |license and state issued identification cards.

MR. BANNOCCK said the first part of the bill addresses the
i ssuance of a driver's license and the requirenment that a person
receiving such a card nust either be a citizen of the US. or
have docunentation showing he/she is in the US. legally. The
second part of the bill addresses the group of people who are
not US. citizens but are here legally. A common exanple, he
said, is that of foreign exchange students who are in the state
on a student visa. The bill would allow the DW the authority
to shorten the length of [the validity of] a driver's license to
coincide with the expiration of the docunents that allow the
exchange student to remain in the country legally.

8:27:02 AM

MR. BANNOCK, regarding Representative Gardner's question about
conpliance, said if Alaska is not in conpliance wth the Real 1D

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 16, 2006



Act in time, the division wll be required to mark a

nonconformng driver's |icense. As such, that identification
cannot be used to access a federal building and will not be
recognized as valid identification by the Transportation
Security Adm nistration. By May 2008, a person wthout a

government issued ID that neets the federal requirenments wll
not be allowed to board an airpl ane.

MR. BANNOCK said when CGovernor M ke Huckabee stated that the
Real 1D Act puts the Division of Mtor Vehicles' enployees on
the frontline of national defense, he neant that as an insult.
M . Bannock relayed that when he says the same thing he neans it

as a conplinent. Regarding Chair Seaton's questions related to
l[tability, he indicated that he does not know what liabilities
his enpl oyees may incur. Not wi t hst andi ng that, he enphasized

how seriously he takes the issue. He reported that his nunber

one manager of driver's licensing is a nenber on one of the

subconm ttees of the federal rule-making committee. He said her

wor k involves foreign docunents and "the second group of people
that we're tal king about.™

MR. BANNOCK, regarding the technol ogical advances being nade in
order to conply with both the projected state law and the
i npl enentation of the Real ID Act, stated that in his 2007
capital budget he has requested small desktop scanners to get
el ectronic copies of everyone's birth certificates. M. Bannock
tal ked about a grant given to the division to "connect with the
social security division" through a program called Soci al

Security On Line Verification (SSQOLV). The program detects
m stakes and fraud related to social security nunbers. M.
Bannock stated that as soon as the division has conpletely
i npl enented the SSOLV canpaign, it wll nove into the next
el ectronic verification, called, Systematic Alien Verification
(SAV), which will allow the division to electronically verify

the validity of foreign passports. He predicted that technol ogy
woul d be incorporated by the DW by 2008.

8:32:28 AM

MR. BANNOCK, in response to a request for clarification from
Chair Seaton, stated his belief that the State of Alaska is
ultimately [liable] for anything his DW enployees do or don't
do. He offered an exanple of the benefit of wusing the
verification and storage process previously described.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 16, 2006



CHAI R SEATON asked if M. Bannock would say that the requirenent
that the docunents be valid will be covered by naking a copy of
t he docunents and keeping themin the DW' s records.

MR. BANNOCK answered, "That is one part of it, sir, yes, sir."
8:33:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER nentioned that there is sonething called
a Metricula Consular card, which is a type of fraudulent

governnent |ID card. She asked M. Bannock if he is aware of any
ot her fraudul ent card that should be included in the bill.

MR.  BANNOCK answered no. He stated, "I'm not aware of any
nearly-as-broad docunents that have been [wi dely] accepted by
ot her organizations.” In response to a follow up question from

Representative Gardner, he confirned that he is famliar wth
the Metricula Consul ar card.

8:34: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "If the purpose of this is to
deter terrorism and you have an illegal alien, and they can't
get on the plane without a valid ID, how are they going to | eave
t he country?"

MR. BANNOCK deferred response to that question to "the Real ID
[ Act] people.”

8:35:22 AM

CHAI R SEATON, regarding M. Bannock's aforenentioned statenent
that those involved with the Real ID Act are currently neeting
to discuss the requirenents of the Act, asked, "Do we have any
i ndi cation of what other portions mght be required under the
i ssuance of these ID cards?"

8:35: 38 AM

MR. BANNOCCK answered yes. He indicated that some of the issues
bei ng decided have to do with standardi zations and | ayout of the
items listed on driver's l|icenses and | Ds. In response to a
foll owup question from Chair Seaton asking if those decisions
will be made necessary through statute or regulation, M.
Bannock said they will be carried out through "sonme policy and
regul ation.™ He stated, "Right now we know of no other
[statutorily] required changes other than what is before you."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 16, 2006



8:36: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there have been any court
challenges at the state or federal | evel regarding the
constitutionality of an illegal alien being unable to get a
driver's license.

8:.37.:28 AM

MR. BANNOCK answered that he is unaware of any such cases.

8:38: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained his concern is that there
have been challenges that state that children of illegal aliens
cannot get an education. He said he thinks those cases were
struck down on the grounds of equal protection. Barring an
illegal alien from getting a driver's license that nmy be

essential to his/her getting to a doctor, a school, or a job may
be a denial of equal protection.

8:38:34 AM

MR. BANNOCCK replied that he cannot recall such a |awsuit. He
noted that the federal Real ID Act does allow for an option that
HB 290 does not take into consideration, and one which he said
he would do his best to discourage: the availability of a state
to issue a driver's license or |ID that has not undergone the
same scrutiny as described previously. He offered his
understanding that the states of Utah and Virginia offer such a
license, but do not allow it to be wused as a form of
identification. He said he knows of other states considering "a
second tier of driver licensing,” but he enphasized that he
thinks that's poor public policy.

8:40: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his understanding that it is
actually the states of Utah and Tennessee that offer the special
driver's license, and the state of Virginia is considering the
option. He continued:

As | understand the basic concept of these |aws,

if you are an illegal alien you can get a |icense, but
it will indicate on there clearly that this doesn't
neet the requirenent of federal law, you're an illegal

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 16, 2006



alien, or sonmething like that. Isn't that the basic
concept ?

8:41: 06 AM
MR. BANNOCK replied that that is an accurate statenent.
8:41: 17 AM

CHAI R SEATON said California has been westing with the problem
of whether it is better to have [illegal aliens] take a driving
test to ensure they can read signs and drive safely, or whether
it is better to not have them cone through the driver's |icense
system He said, of <course, if those illegal aliens are
conducting normal, everyday business, that neans they are
currently driving w thout any |icense. He asked M. Bannock if
Al aska has experienced that problem

8:42:11 AM

MR. BANNOCK answered that there are no docunented cases of such
a problem He continued:

The reason for ny ability to nake that statenent is
that by regulation today - not by statute - ... we are
governed by what docunment we may or may not take. And
t hose docunents are only [enphasis on the word "only"]
docunents that would be in the possession of

person "A" - the United States citizen, [or] person

"B" - a person here |egally.
8:42:46 AM
CHAI R SEATON recalled that during a previous hearing of the
bill, there had been discussion about people needing to cone
from villages to renew their |icenses. He stated, "And under
this bill, you wouldn't be able to issue a renewal w thout that

docunentation, is that correct?"

MR. BANNOCK answered in the affirmative.

8:43:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if it is accurate to say that if a

person does not have a driver's license, he/she cannot get auto
i nsur ance.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 16, 2006



MR. BANNOCK answered that that is conventional w sdom but he
said he doesn't want to speak on behalf of the insurance
i ndustry.

8:43:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG poi nted out that a person doesn't have
to have a driver's license to purchase auto insurance. For
exanple, a person may own a car, but have a chauffeur do the
drivi ng.

8:44:23 AM

MR. BANNOCK, in response to a remark by Chair Seaton, said he
woul d bring the committee a fiscal note.

8:44: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG told M. Bannock that he would like to
see the fiscal note broken down into conponent parts. He said
he would also like to know any potential for federal funding
related to the Real I D Act and how | ong those funds would | ast.

8:45:31 AM

MR. BANNOCK said the fiscal note will be $20, 000. He stated
that although the fiscal note will show that there nmay be other
costs resulting fromthe Real ID Act, it will only be specific

to the programm ng changes related to HB 290.

CHAI R SEATON asked, "And it won't involve the training that's
going to be required to ... ensure validity on the docunent ?"

MR BANNOCK answered that's correct.

CHAI R SEATON asked M. Bannock to show that exception in the
fiscal note.

8.46: 24 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to know "everything
you know that's going to be involved in the inplenentation of

this Act so we can really look at this systemcally."

8:46: 42 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 16, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there is a specific action that a
DW enpl oyee takes if he/she receives an application that |ooks
like it has been forged.

MR. BANNOCK answer ed yes.
8:47:11 AM
MATTHEW KERR testified on behalf of hinself in opposition to HB

290. Hs witten testinony read as follows J[origina
punctuati on provided]:

My nanme is Mtthew Kerr and | am a snall business
owner from Anchorage here representing nyself. Wth
all due respect to Representative Lynn, | am here to

state ny strong opposition to HB 290, which would
require nore paperwork and bureaucracy to issue
driver’s licenses in Al aska.

This bill has no benefit to our Geat State or its
resi dents. It’s the worst of governnment for its own
sake. This adds a wuseless paperwrk burden to our
resi dents, our foreign guests, and our DW. I
shouldn’t need to remind you that the terrorists had
perfectly valid foreign passports and US visas when
t hey boarded the airplanes. This bill does not provide
one single benefit to the residents of this state for
all the noney it would cost.

The first obvious problem with this bill is the cost
and difficulty involved in training our DW agents to
be inmm gration officers. If soneone has an expired F-1
student visa, an 1-94 entry form marked valid for
“Duration of Status” instead of a particular end date,
and an 1-20 formindicating current enrollnment at UAA,
could you tell me if they are legally entitled to be
here, and for how | ong? Wat about someone who renewed
their passport while in the US, and no |onger has
their original visa? Under the proposed rules, a
friend of mne woiuld have needed to return to the DW
four tinmes in the past five years to renew their
license each tine. | mm gration paperwork can be
extrenely conplex, and we shouldn’t be wasting noney
to train our DW agents on the finer points of
i mmgration | aw

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 16, 2006



Second, a driver’s |license or identification card
should be exactly that. A person’s ability to drive
legally has no | ogical connection to their immgration
status. If | was a foreign visitor, | would skip the

troubl e,
foreign

ignore the law, and just continue to use ny
license for the full Ilength of ny stay,

instead of obtaining an Al aska |license after 90 days.
This neans that we actually lose the ability to fully

mai nt ai n

that person’s driving record. In terns of

identification, foreign passports are accepted just as

widely as a state ID card.

The only argunment | have heard in favor of this bil
is that our Alaska ID cards would possibly not be
enough to board an airplane. | don’'t believe that
aviation in Al aska would suddenly cease to function
because of our driver’s |licenses. W should be

fighting this kind of federal nandate; not giving in
to it. Last Tuesday, New Hanpshire passed NH House
Bill 1582 specifically prohibiting their DW from
i npl enenting these rules, calling them “repugnant to
Amendnents 4 through 10 of the United States

Constitution.” | agree with that assertion.

However, the strongest argunment against this bil
cannot be quantified in financial figures and
statistics. People that Iive here strongly value their
privacy, and no Al askan residents |I know are in favor
of this bill or increasing the |level of bureaucracy at
our DW. This is a slight but unnecessary encroachnent
on nmy privacy and yours. | don’t want to be asked for
nore papers when | go to renew ny |icense. The current
system isn’'t broken. Nobody wants this bill, and it

has no benefits for wus. It honestly disappoints ne
that a state that rightly prides itself so highly on

persona

rights coul d att enpt to pass this

| egi sl ation.

Thank you for listening to ny testinony. Please vote
agai nst this |egislation.

8:50: 48 AM

MR KERR, in
descri bed the

response to questions from Representative Gtto,
docunentation he had to present to obtain his

student identification card. He said the first tinme he

regi stered was

in 1992, and he does not recall being asked for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 16, 2006



his driver's license. He agreed that it is conceivable that he
could have registered without proving he was whom he said, but
that the university's regul ati ons coul d have changed since 1992.

8:52: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for a copy of M. Kerr's witten
t esti nony.

8:52:21 AM

MR. KERR, in response to a question from Representative Gatto
confirmed that he is testifying on behalf of hinmself; however,
he said he travels internationally frequently and has many
friends in Alaska and outside the state. In response to a
foll ow-up question from Representative Gatto, he listed sone of
the reasons that spurred him to testify, including the DW
requirenent to maintain a copy of a scanned birth certificate in
a dat abase. He said he is a database programmer, and the
t hought of that information being there scares hima little bit.
He said one of the requirenents of the Real ID Act is that al
50 states have direct electronic access to the state DW
records. M. Kerr said he can easily imgine a disgruntled DW
enpl oyee sonewhere in Southern California getting ready to quit
and deciding to do "a dunp of the Alaska records and sell them
on the Internet.” He said he is sure the state has good
security, but no system is perfect. The nore information that
is out there, the nore tenpting a target the system becones, he
concl uded.

8:53:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN sai d even though he disagrees with M. Kerr,
he thinks it is helpful to hear both sides of the issue.

8:54: 42 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked M. Bannock if people will have to submt the
af orenenti oned docunents upon renewing a driver's |license.

MR. BANNOCK i ndicated that Version Y would require docunentation
for renewal s. He said, "W are attenpting to develop a program
right now that if we can verify with the data that we already
have, when Representative Paul Seaton shows up at his Honer DW
to renew his driver's license, he will not be required to do
t hat . That is one of the yet unanswered questions of the
application by 2008."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 16, 2006



8:55: 56 AM
CHAI R SEATON announced that HB 290 was heard and hel d.

HB 438-1 NI TI ATI VE, REFERENDUM RECALL PETI Tl ONS

8:56:18 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 438, "An Act relating to initiative, referendum and
recall petitions; and providing for an effective date."

8:57:13 AM

ELI ZABETH BARBARA BACHMEI ER, testifying on behalf of herself in
opposition to HB 438, told the conmttee that she has a Master's
degree in Governmnent. She paraphrased her witten testinony,
whi ch read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

In consideration of the current situation in Al aska
and ny analysis of this bill, | believe that this is
unnecessary |egislation. Current procedures are not
broken; they do not need to be fixed. Please apply
your attention to matters that need vyour focused
attention, consideration, and action.

| have worked as a paid signature gatherer in Al aska
on a nunber of petitions. | am delighted to do this
work as it causes nme to feel that | am participating
in denocracy and the qualitative inprovenent of our
state. As a retired mlitary officer and former high
school teacher, this activity now allows nme to

participate at the grass-roots level in denocratic
principles that | hold dear and that keep our state
strong. | Ilike that. Please don't nake it nore
difficult for nme and others to participate in this
way .
8:59:19 AM

The following are four specific areas that | find
objectionable in this proposed Ilegislation (24-

LS1344\ L, dated 2/8/06):

1) As discussed on pages 6 line 22 and 10 line 9,
there is no need to increase the percentage of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 16, 2006



gualified voter signatures in order to determ ne that
an initiative, a referendum or a recall petition has
been successful and may appear on an appropriate
ballot. Qualified signatures from ten percent of those
who voted in the preceding general election conprise a
fair sanpling of the population. It is inportant to
note that the matter is not finally decided by 10% of
the voters; this sinply allows the issue to cone
before all voters on the next voting occasion. This is
perfectly fine.

2) | also disagree with setting the maximum rate of
nmeal s rei nbursenent, shown on pages 2 line 2, 4 line
13, and 8 line 6, at only $15.00 for circulators who
travel 100 mles or nore from their hone communities.
This figure is unreasonably low and there is no need
to address it in this way.

But, for the record, | taught school near Bethel;
$15.00 there might buy sonebody breakfast, but
certainly not lunch and dinner, t 0o. I was a
circulator in Fairbanks and had neals at the hotel
where | stayed; dinner each night was always over
$15.00. If this reinbursenent mnmust be addressed, and |
don’t believe it should be, | recomend the federal

per diem rate. In My, legislators will get $200.00
per day for food and lodging in Juneau during the
session. If this nust be addressed, why not make the
circulator’s neals reinbursenent equal to the federal
per diemrate that you receive when you are away from
your hones and staying here?

3) Wiile | was in Fairbanks, | was asked to perform
some organizing duties in addition to my signature
gat heri ng; I specifically provi ded circul at or
traini ng, di stributed signature books, col | ected
conpl eted ones, and other duties. | can see no reason

to disallow this occasional additional duty as is
di scussed on pages 2 line 12, 4 line 23, and 8 line

16. Disallowwng the activities | have described
increases the cost of the initiative, referendum and
recall process. This is not good for denobcracy or
Al aska.

4) One final inportant point is the fiscal note that
must be associated with this bill. The bill speaks of
fees or fines charged to organizations, organizers, or
circulators as puni shrent for i nfractions or

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 16, 2006



violations to prohibited practices; how are these
fines levied, collected, and accounted for? How wl|
t hese enforcenent operations be funded? There is also
a new form that is proposed here and that would need
to be created and managed. Do we need to spend the
State’s noney in this way? No.

The current initiative, referendum and recall process
wor ks just fine.

There is no reason to change it. Do not pass this
proposed | egi sl ati on.

There are other topics that need your tine and
attention. This bill seens to make nuch nore difficult
the people’s right to participate in state and |oca
government. And, this change woul d be very w ong.

Thank you for allowing ne to testify against HB 438
Again, as a person experienced in this work, | believe
t hat changes to the process proposed in this
| egi slation are unnecessary and counter to denobcracy.

9:03: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for Ms. Bachneier's testinony in
writing.

9:03:45 AM

M5. BACHVEIER, in response to a series of questions from
Representative Ranras, offered her understanding that there is
presently no per diem given for neals, but "it is a negotiable
item" which "probably would vary, depending on location.” She
said when she worked on an initiative by Representative Ranras
she was not reinbursed for neals; however, she has been
reinbursed for neals while working on other initiatives - too
many to list separately.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked, "Do you wunderstand that it's
illegal to take additional noney - nore than a dollar per
signature - as a reinbursable itenP"

M5. BACHMEIER replied, "I don't understand that to be the case.
| did point this out to you, however, in Fairbanks, when we
spoke. "

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said, "Which is why we didn't offer any
incentives like that, because they're illegal." He descri bed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 16, 2006



Ms. Bachneier as a thoughtful, articulate person, and said that
he has a great deal of respect for her, even if her views differ
fromhis own.

M5. BACHMVEIER, in response to questions from Representative
Ranras, said she received a flat fee for "those tasks that |
ment i oned: training others in the legal requirenents, passing
out booklets that were needed, and collecting notarized ones."
She said one of those initiatives had to do wth "sane-day
ai rborne shooting.” She said she has lived in Al aska just over
a decade.

9:07: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked Ms. Bachneier if she thinks it's
appropriate for non-Al aska residents with "nmultiple voter 1Ds
from multiple states” to cone to Alaska to participate in the
initiative process.

M5. BACHMEI ER said she has not heard of such a situation, but
she indicated that she does not think such a thing would be
appropri ate.

9:08: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked Ms. Bachneier if she can appreciate
that the intent of the bill, as it relates to signature
gatherers, is to protect Al askans.

9:08: 31 AM

CHAIR SEATON said he would like the sponsor to focus on
guestions unrelated to the intent of the bill, because he said
he doesn't think anyone is challenging that intent.

M5. BACHMEI ER stated, "Right, and | don't find it protective, so
| was going to disagree with the initial premse."

9:09: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG observed that Representative Ranras,
[during his questions to Ms. Bachneier], was focusing on Section
1 of the bill, related to the qualifications of the people who
gat her the signatures. He said Ms. Bachneier has expertise [in
col | ecting signatures].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 16, 2006



M5. BACHMEIER, in response to questions from Representative
Gruenberg, offered her understanding that although she does not
[circulate petitions] as her sole neans of incone, there are
ot hers who do, and she said although there nay be administrators
from out of state, she has never net another circul ator working
in Alaska who is not an Al askan.

9:11:43 AM

MYRL THOWPSON, testifying on behalf of hinself in opposition to
HB 438, remnded the commttee that he was the chair of the
successful Ogan Is So Gone recall effort. He shared an anecdote
related to initiatives, recalls, and referenduns.

9:14: 00 AM

MR. THOMPSON stated that there is absolutely no need for HB 438,
because the current system works well. He reviewed the recall
process that was used during the Ogan is So Gone recall, stating
that he hopes he never has to go through the grueling process
again in his lifetine. He said the process was started 13-14

nonths before the end of the term of the particular |egislator
and a nunber of nonths passed before the recall group could get
answers to its questions from the Division of Elections on how
to proceed. At that point, if a recall petition is approved
then it nust be circulated for another round of signatures, he
said - up to 25 percent of the people who voted. He offered
other details related to the Ogan Is So Gone recall experience.

MR. THOWSON said that no matter how thorough a recall process
is, there are still factors that slow it down. For exanpl e,
sonre of the signatures are rejected because people change
addr esses. He talked about a court <challenge, whereby
Representative Ogan challenged the criterion for the recall. He
stated, "I think that you should probably pull ... the sunmary
of that case, because what they said was that ... those four
criterion were actually good enough - ... they don't have to be
nore specific than that." M. Thonpson said the definitions
that are proposed [in HB 438] seemto "bring this up to alnost a
crimnal level,"” by requiring proof that is alnost inpossible to
get. He concluded by reiterating that there is no provision in
the bill that needs to be adopted; the systemworks well as is.

9:20: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS directed attention to page 5, lines 1-10,
which define the terns "corruption”, "inconpetence", "lack of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 16, 2006



fitness", and "neglect of duties". He asked M. Thonpson for
his feedback on the definitions.

9:21: 07 AM

MR. THOMPSON answered, "I feel that they weren't given a
definition on purpose.” He explained that the courts already
said the hurdles don't need to be nmade any higher than they
already are, and the definitions in bill would mke the recal

process nore difficult.
9:22: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if M. Thonpson and Ms. Bachnei er
have suggestions on how the |l egislature could inprove the | aw

9:23: 03 AM

MR. THOWSON, regarding the recalls, reiterated that the present
system works wel | . He said there has only been one recall in
the history of the state, and he said he thinks "that speaks
vol unes. "

9:23: 30 AM

M5. BACHMEI ER concurred with the remarks of M. Thonpson that
the current system is a good one, and she said she sees no
reason to invest energy or funds in maki ng unnecessary changes.

9:23: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked what percentage of signatures in
the Ogan |I's So Gone recall process was di scarded.

9:24: 05 AM

MR. THOWPSON estinmated 30 percent, but said that nunber could
have been higher. In response to a followup question, he
indicated that the rejected signatures happened in "both
i nstances"” when signatures were collected, even when extrene
attention to detail was given

9:24: 50 AM

MR THOMPSON, in response to questions from Representative
Gatto, said there were three people, plus hinmself as chair, who
made up the recall commttee. In response to a followup

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 16, 2006



guestion from Representative Gatto, he said he took his job as
chair seriously.

9:26: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO offered his understanding that there were
sone activities during the Ogan |Is So Gone recall process that
were borderline illegal. He asked M. Thonpson if, as chair, he
would feel it was his responsibility to encourage peopl e engaged
in those activities to cease.

9:27:40 AM
MR, THOWPSON answered absol utely. He enphasized that if he had

t hought that anybody connected even in the nost renote way to a
recall was carrying on with such behavior he would have done

everything he could to [stop] it. He assured Representative
Gatto that no one involved with the Ogan Is So Gone recall had
anything to do wth borderline illegal activities, if they

i ndeed happened.
9:29:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO referred to the proposal in the bill to
raise the 10 percent to 20 percent, and he asked M. Thonpson
how significant an increase that would be and if it would have
affected the ability of M. Thonpson's group to have effected a
recal | .

MR. THOWPSON said the higher percentage would have nade it nore
difficult for the Ogan Is So Gone recall. He said a requirenent
for 20 percent would result in a significant increase in ting,
effort, and cost on the part of gatherers having to obtain the
increase in required signatures, and it would translate into
nore time and noney for the Division of Elections, because it
would have to hire people to count those signatures.
Furthernore, he said, it would also increase the anmount of noney
that has to be paid by the initiative groups that pay $1 per
si gnat ure.

9:29:59 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Thonpson if he agrees that it
would be the right of citizens to say that they don't need a

reason for a recall, only signatures.

9: 30: 23 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 16, 2006



MR. THOWPSON responded, "I support the system that we have
currently in place; | don't think that it needs to be |essened
or made harder."

9: 30: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked M. Thonpson, "You had to
ultimately get 25 percent of what?"

9:31:11 AM

MR. THOWPSON answered [25 percent] of registered voters in the
district [before the recall could get on the ballot].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Thonmpson if he thinks 25
percent is too high.

MR. THOWSON said that is a reasonable amount - not too |ow or
too high. He added, "All you're doing ... at that point is
getting it to where it can go before the vote of the people, and
that's a substantial nunber.” In response to a followup

guestion from Representative G uenberg, he said the Ogan Is So
Gone recall signature gatherers were able to reach that nunber.

9:31:46 AM
CHAI R SEATON asked M. Thonpson whether that is 25 percent of

t he nunber of people who voted in the last election, or if it is
25 percent of the total registered voters.

9:32: 05 AM

MR, THOWPSON indicated that, "to be safe,” the Ogan Is So Gone
group "went with ... the vote in the last election.™

9:32: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she thinks it's inportant to
di stinguish that "it doesn't have to be 25 percent of the sane
i ndi vidual s, but 25 percent of the nunber of people.”

9:32: 47 AM

MR. THOVPSON responded, "I believe that's the case, because they
went through the Division of Elections' result on the nunber of
people that -- actually there was sone contention between

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 16, 2006



ballots cast and voters, which ... did nmake it a little nore
difficult also. That changed the nunbers sonmewhat."

9:33:12 AM

JOHN VI NDUSKA testified on behalf of hinself in opposition to HB
438. He said he was a signature gatherer during the Ogan Is So

Gone recall and because of that experience he knows how
difficult it is currently to recall a person. He stated, "It's
a very hard process, and | don't believe people are going to
recall soneone just because of policy difference." He stated

his belief that with the current corruption in governnent, there
needs to be a nmechanism for people to be able to do recalls. He
echoed M. Thonpson's statenent that the Ogan Is So CGone recal

is the only successful recall in the history of Al aska, thus, he
said he doesn't think people will "be doing this frivolously."
He remarked that everything he needed to say M. Thonpson has
al ready covered, other than the fact that if HB 438 is enacted

it will send the wong nessage to people by making the bar so
high there is no way to get anyone out of office "unless
t hey murder sonmeone or sonething like that.” He expressed his

support for the status quo and reiterated his opposition to the
bill.

9:36: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there are particular parts of the
bill that are glaringly in need of being renedied.

9: 36: 49 AM

MR. VINDUSKA replied that the nost glaring issue is the proposal
to raise the nunber of signatures required. He said people have
to collect signatures within the district of the person being

recal | ed, addi ng, "Everything is gear ed to gi ve t he
representative the benefit of the doubt.” He indicated that the
bill would squelch future efforts.

9:38: 23 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked M. Vinduska to confirm that t he
interpretation he got fromthe Division of Elections was that a
signature gatherer could not collect the signature of a person
fromthe district of the public official being recalled, unless
the person was physically in the district at the tinme he/she
signed the petition.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 16, 2006



MR. VINDUSKA answered in the affirmative. He offered further
details.

9:39:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS announced his intention as sponsor to
delete nuch of the |anguage regarding percentage [increases].
He explained that the bill was intended primarily to address
cheating in the initiative process. He asked future testifiers
to give him a chance to create a commttee substance to "take
all that into account."

9:40: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the issue of having to collect
signatures while within district boundaries may be a technical
point to review

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER sai d she has been pouring through statute
and doesn't see any reference to a requirenment that the
signatures have to be collected within the district - only that
they nust be collected from people who are registered to vote in
the district.

9:41: 13 AM

CHAI R SEATON said the commttee would seek clarification on the
issue fromthe Division of Elections.

9:41: 28 AM

ROBIN MLEAN, testifying on behalf of herself, relayed her
invol venrent with the Ogan Is So Gone recall. She confirned,
"The Division of Elections did require us to collect signatures
in this very massive district only, which I think was a judgnent
call of the D vision of Elections.” She explained that instead
of being able to collect signatures from a nmjor store where
everyone shopped, the signature gatherers had to collect the
signatures in rural areas. Regardi ng the previous comments of
[ Representative Gatto] regarding the activities reported during
the Ogan Is So CGone recall, M. MLean said she thinks the
people involved in that recall were careful to behave in a
professional way and were not involved in any of those
activities. She said she would like a law in place [allow ng
petitioners to gather the signatures of people froma district,
no matter if those people are in the district at the tine they
sign the petition. She explained the reason she would like to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 16, 2006



see such a law codified is because, for exanple, in Anchorage
many people don't even know where the district |ines are.

M5. MLEAN said she feels the current process for recalls is a
fair one. She stated that it is not only a citizen's right, but
al so his/her duty, to conduct recalls. She noted that those who
worked on the Ogan Is So CGone recall effort did so wthout
rei nbursenent, because they believed deeply in the cause. She
added, "Although |I believe that's probably the best way, | think
that with initiatives and referenduns, that's pretty nuch

i npossible with the time constraint." She concluded, "I do
understand the need to feel that these signature gatherers are
valid signature gatherers; however, | do very strongly fee

that the enphasis should be nore on giving citizens the right to
sign one of these petitions [than] on the people gathering
them ™"

9:45: 48 AM

M CHAEL M LLER, testifying on behalf of hinself, addressed the
previously stated concern regarding people outside of the state
funding petition efforts in Al aska. He stated that, outside of
never having witnessed that hinself, he wanted to note that an
initiative, [referendum, or recall cannot happen w thout
citizens actively wanting it to happen. He explained that
people aren't paid to sign - they do so because they believe in
t he cause. Furthernore, the issues still have to go through a
voting process follow ng the signing. He said he doesn't see
the purpose of HB 438, unless it's to make the process easier.
He stated that the process definitely does not need to be nade

nmore difficult, "because there is just not a situation in this
state where our governnent and way of life is being disrupted by
people ... swarmng in and changing our laws - that's not
happeni ng. "
9:47. 45 AM

CHAI R SEATON, after ascertaining that there was no one else to
testify, closed public testinony.

9:48: 20 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed his interest in helping to
figure out the previously discussed issue regarding where

signatures may be coll ected. He offered his understandi ng that
AS 15.45.580 dealt with this issue.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 16, 2006



9:48: 48 AM
CHAI R SEATON announced that HB 438 was heard and hel d.

HB 45- CONTRI BUTI ONS, LOBBYI STS, DI SCLOSURE

9:49: 00 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the |ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 45, "An Act anmending the definition of the term
"l obbyist' in the Regulation of Lobbying Act; and providing for
an effective date."

9:49: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE  WEYHRAUCH, Al aska State Legislature,
presented HB 45, as sponsor. He noted that the bill 1is
substantially simlar to an initiative that wll be on the

bal | ot August 2006, with sone differences.
9:50: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS), Version 24-LS0312\F, Wayne, 3/10/06, as a work
draft. There being no objection, Version F was before the
conmittee.

9: 50: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  WEYHRAUCH said [Version F] would tighten
recording requirenents, effecting the anount of contributions
that nust be reported, and woul d reduce the nunber of hours that
sonmeone nust register as a |obbyist from 40, back to 10. In
response to a question from Chair Seaton, he identified the
di fferences between the initiative and the bill. First, he said
that the initiative has an effective date of 2005 while the
proposed bill has an effective date of 2007. Next, he referred
to page 2, beginning on line 20, which is |anguage defining the
meani ng of "Il obbyist”, which read as foll ows:

(B) engages in the influencing of
| egislative or admnistrative action as a business,
occupation, or profession.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH noted that the original |anguage of the

initiative read: "represents oneself as engaging in the
i nfluence". He said that |[|anguage presents problens to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 16, 2006



Al aska Public Ofice Comm ssion (APCC) because many tines there

are | obbyists who do not represent thenselves as engaging in the

practice of | obbying - they don't identify thensel ves.

Representati ve Wyhrauch stated that the |anguage in Version F

is "a clear distinction and a better definition for purposes of
adm nistering the [aw "

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH indicated that adopting HB 45 would

mean not allowng the initiative on the ballot. He said he
respects Representative Harry Crawford, the sponsor of the
initiative, and they have agreed to disagree. He stated, "I
don't like the idea that ... the legislature goes back and
changes sonething once you adopt it, sinply to be tricky about
getting an initiative off the ballot, so | wuld absolutely

oppose, as an official in the legislature, any changes to this
once we do it."

9:53: 07 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that an initiative that
is adopted cannot be changed for two years, but a law can be
changed after one year, and Representative Wyhrauch is saying
it is not his intent to change the law any sooner than if the
initiative had passed.

9:53:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH confirnmed that is correct.

9:54:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE =~ WEYHRAUCH, in response to a request for
clarification from Representative Elkins, explained his previous
comments regardi ng page 2, |ine 20.

9:54: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he thinks sone of the community
del egations that conme to Juneau spend nore than 10 hours

[l obbying] in a 30-day peri od.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said that is a policy distinction in
the bill that is up for debate.

9: 55: 20 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 16, 2006



CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that the hours counted
towards |obbying have to do wth active neeting tinme wth
| egi sl ators, excluding any public testinony.

9: 55: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS reiterated that a recent delegation from
Ket chi kan spent nore than 10 hours.

9:55:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said historically people have to
regi ster as |obbyists and fill out a form

9: 56: 02 AM

CHAI R SEATON echoed Representative Weyhrauch's statenment that it
will be the policy call of the commttee to decide the tine
[imt.

9:56: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH sai d he thinks the rule before was four
hours in a 30-day period, so the proposed l|legislation is nore of
a relaxed standard than it historically was.

9:56: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER brought attention to the difference
bet ween [subparagraphs (A) and (B), in paragraph (10)] of

Section 4. She said [subparagraph (B), t ext provi ded
previously] relates to |obbyists who do their work as a
"busi ness, occupation, or profession.” [ Subparagraph (A)], she
said, "is when they do it for paynent." [Subparagraph (A) read

as follows:]

(A) is enployed and receives paynents
or who contracts for econom c consideration, including
r ei mbur senent for reasonable travel and living
expenses, to communicate directly or through the
person's agents wth any public official for the
purpose of influencing legislation or admnistrative
action for nore than 10 hours in any 30-day period in
one cal endar year; or

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said, "So, a citizen who cones down to
| obby, or sonebody who is a teacher who cones down to |obby for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 16, 2006



education, 1is not doing it as part of their profession,
busi ness, or occupati on; they're citizens | obbying for
sonet hing, and they wouldn't have to register as |obbyists."

9: 56: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH suggested that the comrmttee obtain the
i nput of the Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion (APQCC).

9:57:21 AM
BROOKE M LES, Executi ve Di rector, Al aska Public Ofices

Comm ssion (APOC), stated that the commssion has a neutral
position regarding HB 45. Furthernore, she said that if HB 45

passes, it will have no fiscal inpact on APCC.
9:58: 35 AM
M5. MLES, 1in response to a question from Representative

Gardner, stated that elected or appointed nunicipal officials or
enpl oyees are exenpt from the |obbying law, they never are
required to register and report. Individuals hired to represent
a municipality are required to register and report the paynent
armount .

9:59: 55 AM
M5. MLES, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, stated
that when enpl oyee |obbyists come to Juneau to testify, "under

this law they woul d be subject to the 10-hour test."

10: 00: 20 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if that applies to a fisherman who is self-
enpl oyed and | obbies on his own behalf regarding a fishing bill.

10: 00: 46 AM

M5. MLES responded that an individual who is the sole
proprietor of a business or a closely held corporation whose
only officers are married partners, for exanple, has not in the
past been required to register and report as a | obbyist. She
prof f ered:

You have a good exanple with M. Mrl Thonpson, this

year and |ast year, who covers all of ... [his] own
expenses to be in Juneau and works with the process,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- March 16, 2006



and testifies, and frequently would ask for neetings
with legislators or staff in efforts to influence
| egi sl ative action. But no one is paying ... [hinm.
That's how we see the person who's representing her or
hi s own busi ness.

M5. MLES, in response to a followup question, said M.
Thonpson is not considered a |obbyist and, thus, does not have
to register, because he is not receiving paynents froma third

party.
CHAI R SEATON asked if that is clear in statute.

M5 MLES answered, "It is in the exenptions section of the
statute, which is not part of this bill. But it is clear and
has been part of that statute since 1976."

10: 02: 36 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if Ms. Mles if she had any other suggestions
for changes that need to be nade to avoi d confusion.

10: 02: 45 AM

M5. MLES answered no. For the commttee's information, she
noted that there is another type of |obbyist called a
representational | obbyist. She said, "That can cover a person

who is not enployed by or under contract for a fee by the entity
that she or he is attenpting to influence |egislative action on,
but the entity covers their expenses.” She said those
individuals are required to file a registration and make public
that they are there representing another party, but they are not
required to file |obbyist reports and are not subject to the
restrictions on fundraising and participating in the political
process that paid |obbyists are, because they are not really
considered to be paid. The person, conpany, or entity that
reinburses this person's expenses files a quarterly report
di sclosing all expenses connected with the person's activity.
Those expenses, she indicated, are |imted to accomobdations,
food, beverage, and travel. In response to Chair Seaton, she
said APOC thinks "it does provide a good protection for an
i ndi vidual who participates alnost as a volunteer wth just
having their expenses covered in whole or in part, while stil
giving the public the right to know who those people are who are
attenpting to influence the public decision nmakers."

10: 04: 31 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 16, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if allow ng soneone [who has cone to
Juneau to |obby] to use a spare bedroom would be considered
compensat i on.

10: 05: 05 AM

M5. MLES clarified, "The paynent nust conme from the entity for
whi ch the person is trying to influence the |egislative action.”
She offered her understanding that Representative Gatto's
exanple would be called a close economc association with a
| obbyist if the |obbyist was paid to cone to town. She added

“If it were a citizen |obbyist who cones to town, and you
permtted themto stay in your spare bedroom - although | can't
speak to the Legislative Ethics Law - it wouldn't be considered
conpensation to the | obbyist."

10: 05: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she wants to clarify that Ms. Mles
is saying that if she owns a small business and comes to Juneau
specifically to lobby for legislation that may effect that
busi ness, she would not have to register as a | obbyist; however,
if she were to send a paid enployee to do the same on her
behal f, that enpl oyee would have to register as a | obbyi st.

10: 06: 04 AM

M5. MLES answered yes, if that enployee has net the 10-hour
test.

10: 06: 10 AM

CHAI R SEATON referred to Section 1, [subsection (b), which read
as follows]:

(b) Each group shall nake a full report upon
a formprescribed by the comm ssion, listing

CHAI R SEATON noted that one of the itens reported would be

“contributions in excess of $100". He asked if this neans
canpai gn contributions and, if so, if the contribution |imt and
the reporting requirenent apply to individual political
canpai gns. "
10: 06: 34 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 31- March 16, 2006



M5. MLES outlined that Section 1 addresses reports by political
groups, which includes political parties and all varieties of
political action commttees. She continued:

Bef ore changes to the canpaign disclosure law in 2003,
all canpaign contributions that were received from a
contributor that were $100 or less were not identified
by nanme and address, but sinply batched together on
each report. ... After the changes in 2003, each
contributor, regardless of the anmount, was required to
be shown by nane and address.

In Section 1, this reverses that ruling for groups
only, not for candidates. And in a way this would be
hel pful to the comm ssion, because one of the results

of that <change in law - particularly wth group
activity, and particularly wth the groups that
operate on payroll, withhol ding, [and] check-of f
progranms, such as |abor unions and sone corporations -
is that ... we're getting these reports that can be
300-500 pages, ... showing weekly or biweekly 75-cent

contributions from the sanme individual, which as you
can imgine, requires a lot of staff tinme to enter
data into our database, making the information
avai lable to the public. So, this would actually be
hel pful to the comm ssi on.

10: 08: 43 AM

M5. MLES, in response to a request for clarification from Chair
Seaton, said this change in |aw would not affect the requirenent
that each candidate provide a nanme and address for each
contribution. She added, "It is the sane as the initiative."

10: 09: 38 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that HB 45 was heard and hel d.

10: 10: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the federal government is making
it necessary to carry a passport to go to Canada from Al aska,
and he said he wants to address the issue in a House Joint
Resolution to urge the federal governnent to be nore realistic.

10:11: 06 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 32- March 16, 2006



CHAI R SEATON asked Representative Guenberg to investigate an
issue related to "passport light,” and he said he has no
objection to Representative Guenberg's preparing such a
resolution to bring before the commttee.

ADJ OQURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
10: 11: 42 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 16, 2006



